
 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

AGENDA 
April 2, 2015 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 

 
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. March 19, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 
 

5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 
a. AP&P Committee – Linda Harmon 

 
6. REPORTS ON ACTION ITEMS AND IMPLEMENTATION 

a. Senate Constitution Proposal 
b. Faculty Professional Development Speaker – Social Styles, Kevin Walsh 
c. Appointments 

• Strategic Planning Committee – Student Services Representative 
Sherri Zhu 

• Budget Committee – Adjunct Faculty Representative 
Jonathan Over 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Online Education Initiative (MOU) – Memorandum of Understanding (attachment)  
 

b. Academic Ranking 
• John Vento – Professor 
• Susan Snyder - Professor 

 
c. Sabbatical Applicants (attachments) 

• Marthe Aponte 
• Dr. Xiaoyu “Sherri” Zhu 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



d. Equivalencies (attachments) 
1) Career Tech Ed/Office Technologies 
2) Career Tech Ed/Radiological Technology 
3) Career Tech Ed/Fire Technologies 
4) Career Tech Ed/Respiratory Technologies 
5) Career Tech Ed/Emergency Medical Technologies 
6) Career Tech Ed/Nutritional Science/Dietetics 
7) Career Tech Ed/Nursing Science/Clinical Practice 
8) Career Tech Ed/Real Estate 
9) Career Tech Ed/Nursing Science 
10) Kinesiology/Athletic Training 
11) Kinesiology/Coaching 
12) Math Science/Earth Science 
13) Math Science/Physical Science 
 

e. Appointments 
1) Program Review Committee (2) 

• Reina Burgos 
• Victoria Beatty 

 
2) Honors Committee – Faculty Representatives (2) 

• Dr. Alexandra Schroer 
• Van Rider 

 
3) Honors Committee – Chair 

• John Vento 
 

4) DETC Faculty Representatives (2) 
• Priscilla Jenison 
• Jim Bowen  

 
5) Outcomes Committee Co-Chair 

• Dr. G. Austin Haller 
 

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a. Plus Minus Grading Scale 

 
9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
10. SENATE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

a. Academic Policies and Procedures Committee Recommendations 
 

b. Scholar in Residence Election (attachments) 
• Dr. Glenn Haller (nominated by Dr. Irit Gat) 
• Dr. Scott Lee (nominated by Carolyn Burrell) 
• Melanie Parker (nominated by Dr. Irit Gat and Ande Sanders) 
• Dr. Zia Nisani (nominated by Larry Veres) 
• Christos Valiotis, (nominated by Dr. Jessica Harper) 
• Ken Shafer (nominated by Dr. Matthew Jaffe) 

 
c. Outstanding Adjunct Election (to be provided) 

 
 
 



11. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
April 9 – 11, 2015  2015 Spring Plenary Session Westin, San Francisco Airport 
June 11 – 13, 2015 Faculty Leadership Institute San Jose Marriott 
July 9 - 11, 2015 2015 Curriculum Institute Double Tree, Orange  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

2014-15 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
February 19, 2015 
Honors Program Committee 
Accreditation Committee 
AP&P Committee     

April 16, 2015 
Tenure Review Committee 
Accreditation Committee 

March 5, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Tenure Review Committee 

May 7, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

March 19, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Program Review Committee 

May 21, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Honors Program Committee 
Program Review Committee 

April 2, 2015 
AP&P Committee 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, 
disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider 
reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission process, (b) perform 
essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, 
programs, services, activities, or events.   
 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in a meeting should direct such request to Dr. Ed Beyer, Academic Senate President, at (661) 722-6306 (weekdays between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 4:30 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.  Public records related to agenda items for open session are available for 
public inspection 72 hours prior to each regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate’s Office, Administration Building, 3041 
West Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 



 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

MINUTES 
April 2, 2015 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
 

• Dr. Ed Beyer, Senate President, announced the removal of Action Item 7a - Online 
Education Initiative (OEI) – Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The item must 
follow process prior to presentation to the Senate. 
 

• Dr. Beyer requested the amendment of the agenda to add Emergency Action Item 7f - 
Senate Executive Officer at Large Replacement. With the resignation of Susan 
Knapp, Officer at Large, and the absence of Karen Lubick, 2nd Vice President, the 
Senate Executive is down two (2) members. 

 
A motion was made and seconded to add Emergency Action Item 7f Senate Executive 
Officer at Large Replacement. 
22 yes votes; 0 no votes; no abstentions. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
The Academic Senate meeting of April 2, 2015, was called to order at 3:02 p.m. by Dr. Ed 
Beyer, Academic Senate President. 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 

• Dr. Beyer expressed well-wishes from the Senate to Susan Knapp, whose mother 
recently passed. 

• Dr. Beyer expressed well-wishes for Karen Lubick to be back on her feet and return 
soon. 

• Dr. Beyer informed members and expressed congratulations to Dr. Ken Shafer and Dr. 
Joanne Stoll, who recently earned their doctorate.  

• Dr. Beyer reported he will attend an April 13, 2015 Interior Design class where he will 
be presented with five (5) themed designs for the new senate headquarters. 

• Dr. Beyer reported openings on the following committees: 
 

o DETC Co-Chair 
o Program Review Chair – Carol Eastin has expressed interest in serving another 

term 
o Strategic Planning Committee (1) 
o Senate President 
o Faculty Professional Development Committee (4) - closes April 10, 2015 
o Equivalency Committee (1) – closes April 10, 2015 

 
 

Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
• Dr. Zia Nisani expressed the displeasure of the Math & Sciences division with 

unannounced evacuation drills, stating students are unable to make up material. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
a. March 19, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the March 19, 2015 Academic 
Senate meeting. 
Motion carried with corrections; (4) abstentions. 

 
5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 

a. AP&P Committee – Linda Harmon (attachments) 
Ms. Linda Harmon presented the AP&P Committee report – see attachments. 

 
6. REPORTS ON ACTION ITEMS AND IMPLEMENTATION 

a. Senate Constitution Proposal 
Dr. Beyer reported the Senate Constitution Proposal is posted and available to view until 
April 10, 2015. He has met with all divisions to explain the proposal. Voting on the 
proposal will be held April 13 – 24, 2015. 

b. Faculty Professional Development Speaker – Social Styles, Kevin Walsh 
No further action taken. 

c. Appointments 
• Strategic Planning Committee – Student Services Representative 

Dr. Sherri Zhu 
 
Dr. Beyer reported that Dr. Grishman has elected to complete his term as the 
Student Services Representative. Dr. Beyer will ask Dr. Zhu if she will represent the 
Transfer faculty. 
 

• Budget Committee – Adjunct Faculty Representative 
Jonathan Over 
Dr. Beyer reported Jonathan Over attended a recent Budget Committee meeting. 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Online Education Initiative (OEI) – Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (attachment)  
Item removed. 
 

b. Academic Ranking 
• John Vento – Professor 
• Susan Snyder – Professor 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the aforementioned academic ranking 
requests to advance John Vento and Susan Snyder to the rank of Professor. 
Motion carried with two (2) abstentions. 

 
c. Sabbatical Applicants (attachments) 

• Marthe Aponte 
• Dr. Xiaoyu “Sherri” Zhu 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the recommendation of the Faculty 
Professional Development Committee to approve the aforementioned sabbatical 
applications of Marthe Aponte and Dr. Ziaoyu “Sherri” Zhu. 

 

Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



 
Members expressed concern that If Dr. Zhu is approved for sabbatical, how she could 
fulfill her duties to serve on the Strategic Planning Committee. Ms. Nancy Masters reported 
she received a written commitment from Dr. Zhu to attend all committee meetings should 
she be approved for sabbatical. Dr. Ken Shafer noted there has never been a requirement 
for those on sabbatical to fulfill their contractual obligations. Dr. Lowry confirmed Dr. 
Shafer’s statement, noting the Senate cannot base a determination to grant a sabbatical 
leave request, based on faculty sitting on a committee. 
 
Motion carried with two (2) abstentions. 

 
d. Equivalencies (attachments) 

1) Career Tech Ed/Office Technologies 
2) Career Tech Ed/Radiological Technology 
3) Career Tech Ed/Fire Technologies 
4) Career Tech Ed/Respiratory Technologies 
5) Career Tech Ed/Emergency Medical Technologies 
6) Career Tech Ed/Nutritional Science/Dietetics 
7) Career Tech Ed/Nursing Science/Clinical Practice 
8) Career Tech Ed/Real Estate 
9) Career Tech Ed/Nursing Science 
10) Kinesiology/Athletic Training 
11) Kinesiology/Coaching 
12) Math Science/Earth Science 
13) Math Science/Physical Science 

 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned equivalencies.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
e. Appointments 

1) Program Review Committee (2) 
• Reina Burgos 
• Victoria Beatty 

 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned appointments for Ms. 
Reina Burgos and Ms. Victoria Beatty to serve as faculty representatives on the 
Program Review Committee. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 

 
2) Honors Committee – Faculty Representatives (2) 

• Dr. Alexandra Schroer 
• Van Rider 

 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned appointments for Dr. 
Alexandra Schroer and Mr. Van Rider to serve as faculty representatives on the 
Honors Committee. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 

 
 
 
 

Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



3) Honors Committee – Chair 
• John Vento 

 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned appointment of Mr. 
John Vento to serve as the Honors Committee Chair. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 
 

4) DETC Faculty Representatives (2) 
• Priscilla Jenison 
• Jim Bowen  

 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned appointments of Ms. 
Priscilla Jenison and Mr. Jim Bowen to serve as faculty representatives on the 
Distance Education and Technology Committee. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 

 
5) Outcomes Committee Co-Chair 

• Dr. G. Austin Haller 
 

A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned appointment of Dr. 
Glenn Haller to serve as the Outcomes Committee Co-Chair. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 
 

f. Senate Executive Officer at Large - Replacement 
An emergency action item was added to replace Ms. Susan Knapp who resigned as the 
Senate Executive Officer at Large. Dr. Beyer explained that with Ms. Knapp’s resignation 
and Ms. Karen Lubick’s absence, the Senate Executive is down two (2) members. He 
explained the candidate must be selected from among the senate body. Dr. Beyer asked for 
nominations for Officer at Large. Dr. Glenn Haller nominated Dr. Irit Gat. 
 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the appointment of Dr. Irit Gat as the 
replacement for the Officer at Large. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Plus Minus Grading Scale – Dr. Zia Nisani 
 
Dr. Zia Nisani led discussion regarding his request for consideration to change to a 
plus/minus grading scale. Members presented feedback from their constituents regarding 
the concept. Consensus was that faculty prefer the current grading system. Members noted 
complications the plus/minus grading scale would present – specifically within Health 
Sciences and Counseling, as a grade of C- is not included in the scale. Dr. Zia Nisani 
withdrew his request to further explore the possibility of a new grading system. 

 
9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
10. SENATE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

a. Academic Policies and Procedures Committee Recommendations 
 
 
 

Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



b. Scholar in Residence Election (attachments) 
• Dr. Glenn Haller (nominated by Dr. Irit Gat) 
• Dr. Scott Lee (nominated by Carolyn Burrell) 
• Melanie Parker (nominated by Dr. Irit Gat and Ande Sanders) 
• Dr. Zia Nisani (nominated by Larry Veres) 
• Christos Valiotis, (nominated by Dr. Jessica Harper) 
• Ken Shafer (nominated by Dr. Matthew Jaffe) 

 
Dr. Beyer led the ballot process to formally select the 2014-15 Scholar in Resident from the 
aforementioned nominees. Ballots were distributed and signed for; senators then cast and 
submitted ballots and signed again. Ms. Diane Flores-Kagan assisted Ms. Nancy Masters in 
counting the ballots. Ms. Masters informed Dr. Beyer of the honoree. The name of the 
winner will be announced at the April 30, 2015 Faculty Recognition Day event. 

 
c. Outstanding Adjunct Election (to be provided) 

Ms. Nancy Masters distributed nomination letters for the 2014-15 Outstanding Adjunct 
Award. Senators reviewed the letters of three (3) nominees:   
 

• Yesenia Cota 
• Jane Bowers 
• Maurice Boyd 

 
Dr. Beyer led the ballot process to formally select the 2014-15 Outstanding Adjunct. 
Ballots were distributed and signed for; senators then cast and submitted ballots and signed 
again. Ms. Diane Flores-Kagan assisted Ms. Nancy Masters in counting the ballots. Ms. 
Masters informed Dr. Beyer of the honoree. The name of the winner will be announced at 
the April 30, 2015 Faculty Recognition Day event. 

 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

April 9 – 11, 2015  2015 Spring Plenary Session Westin, San Francisco Airport 
June 11 – 13, 2015 Faculty Leadership Institute San Jose Marriott 
July 9 - 11, 2015 2015 Curriculum Institute Double Tree, Orange  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
The Academic Senate meeting of April 2, 2015, was adjourned at 4:25 p.m. by Dr. Ed Beyer, 
Academic Senate President. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT 

Dr. Ed Beyer Jack Halliday Jonet Leighton Ken Shafer 
Dr. Liette Bohler Dr. Jessica Harper Dr. Zia Nisani Elizabeth Sundberg 
Diane Flores-Kagan MaryAnne Holcomb Catherine Overdorf Lisa Vath 
Rosa Fuller Dietra Jackson Harish Rao (proxy) Larry Veres 
Dezdemona Ginosian Dr. Matthew Jaffe Terry Rezek  
Dr. Glenn Haller Susan Knapp Van Rider  

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Karen Lubick Tina McDermott Raul Curiel  

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Dr. Susan Lowry Linda Harmon   

 
 
 
Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



2014-15 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
February 19, 2015 
Honors Program Committee 
Accreditation Committee 
AP&P Committee     

April 16, 2015 
Tenure Review Committee 
Accreditation Committee 

March 5, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Tenure Review Committee 

May 7, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

March 19, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Program Review Committee 

May 21, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Honors Program Committee 
Program Review Committee 

April 2, 2015 
AP&P Committee 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 
 

Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, 
disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider 
reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission process, (b) perform 
essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, 
programs, services, activities, or events.   
 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in a meeting should direct such request to Dr. Ed Beyer, Academic Senate President, at (661) 722-6306 (weekdays between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 4:30 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.  Public records related to agenda items for open session are available for 
public inspection 72 hours prior to each regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate’s Office, Administration Building, 3041 
West Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 

Approved: April 16, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 































































































 
AVC Scholar in Residence nomination: 
 
Dr. Glenn Austin Haller, JD 
 
 
It is with great pleasure that I nominate Dr. Glenn Haller for the recipient of the next Antelope 
Valley College Scholar in Residence award.  Dr. Haller joined the AVC faculty in late 1999 and 
currently serves on the Academic Senate and the Outcomes Committee.   Glenn has been 
appointed as the Legislative Liaison for the Academic Senate and provides important updates on 
current legislation in California as it relates to community colleges. Additionally, Glenn’s legal 
background has been instrumental in the development of the proposed changes to the Senate 
Constitution and the establishment of the Senate Bylaws. 
 
I am currently serving on the by-laws task force with Glenn and have observed the numerous 
hours he puts into writing and updating drafts, and informing the committee with regard to 
judicial issues. 
 
As a co-member on the Outcomes Committee I have witnessed the tasks Glenn takes on that are 
above and beyond the call of duty for committee members.  He recently put together an 
extensive outline for using Curricunet with regard to entering SLO data.  He did this within one 
day of the meeting – which is characteristic of him.  He works tirelessly and gets tasks done 
quickly and efficiently, and is always open to feedback. 
 
Glenn authored the Transfer Model Curriculum Kinesiology degree program for AVC as well as 
the Recreation and Leisure Studies discipline, and is assisting on two other local degree 
programs. In the process, he has authored four classes, and collaborated on several more. 
 
Glenn demonstrated his leadership skills in facilitating the division name change from Physical 
Education to Kinesiology, and in 2013, was elected Chairman of the Kinesiology, Athletics and 
Dance Division Future Curriculum Committee, which is tasked with bringing the division's 
curriculum into modern standards including the creation of new degree and certificate offerings. 
 
Recently, Glenn’s division colleagues recognize his contributions and dedication to the college 
and have elected him to a three-year term as Kinesiology and Athletics Department Chair. 
 
In addition to all his other duties, Glenn is the Sports Information Director and mainstay of the 
Marauder Sports Information Office, which is in its 26th year of providing the best possible 
information to media outlets covering Antelope Valley College Marauder Athletics, and to the 
community in general.  Glenn is responsible for acting as a liaison between AVC’s athletic 
department and the media, compiling and maintaining statistics, producing programs and 
brochures for the different sports at AVC, and keeping the athletics Web site up-to-date and 
accurate. 
 
In 2006, the California Community College Sports Information Association (CCCSIA) honored 
and recognized Dr. Haller as their BRASS TOP Award recipient.  BRASS TOP stands for 
“Bringing Respect And Superior Service To Our Profession,” which is given annually to an 



individual who has made a positive impact in the field of sports information, and through their 
work advances the cause of the community college sports information profession; it is the 
organization’s equivalent to a Hall of Fame. 
       
In 2007 he received the Scoop Hudgins Outstanding SID Award by the All-American Football 
Foundation, an award given by the Foundation to those who excel in their efforts to promote the 
game of football. He finished his tenure in 2005 as the Past-President of the CCCSIA, having 
served a two- year term as President from August 2001, and was the first Secretary-Publicist for 
the organization.     
 
Glenn is also a member of the College Sports Information Directors Association, which 
recognized his 1991 Volleyball Media Guide as the second best in the nation.  Due to Glenn’s 
work, the California Community College Public Relations Organization (CCPRO) named the 
1995-96 men’s basketball program second in the state. In 2002, the office, in conjunction with 
the Antelope Valley College Department of Government and Public Relations, received a Bronze 
Paragon Award for Sports Brochure; the National Council gives this national award for 
Marketing and Public Relations.  The two offices also shared first place in Sports Release, which 
is awarded by the CCPRO.  
 
In early 2000 he was listed 16th on the Top 20 People Who Shaped AVC Athletics list compiled 
by the Antelope Valley Press. 
 
Although I know Glenn does not seek out recognition for his numerous awards and contributions 
to AVC, I feel he well deserves the honor of Scholar in Residence as can be seen by his 
extensive accomplishments both on campus and in the community.  Glenn has told me that he 
does not care about the paycheck or kudos– it is about his passion for the college, the students 
and all staff.   
 
He is clearly deserving of AVC Scholar in Residence and I hope the AVC Academic Senate will 
strongly consider him. 
 
Thank you very much, 
 
Irit Gat, PhD 
Social Science Division 
 



To: Academic Senate                                                                                          February 19, 2015 
From: Carolyn Burrell 
Re: Scholar-In-Residence Nomination 

 

It is with great pleasure that I nominate Dr. Scott Lee for Scholar-In-Residence.  I have known 
Scott since he arrived at AVC in 2001, and have had the good fortune to work with him not only 
as a fellow faculty member, but also as a co-author and contributor to the literature in the 
discipline of Library and Information Science. 

1. Is a full-time member of the certificated staff (Non-Classroom and Classroom). 

Dr. Scott Lee was hired as a full-time faculty member in 2001 and is actively involved in faculty 
and departmental affairs. Since coming to AVC he has served the college on many different 
bodies/committees, including the Academic Senate, AP&P, IT, Basic Skills, DETC, SPBC, and 
the Outcomes Committee (which he chaired from 2006 – 2007). He has served on numerous 
hiring committees, and full-time and adjunct evaluation committees in several divisions.  He 
currently serves as the AVCFT Grievance Representative, and is a faculty advisor for The 
Alliance, a student club.  He has presented or co-presented a number of flex presentations 
including Becoming Allies to LGBTQ Students at AVC (2014), Putting Stereotypes Back on 
the Shelf (2013), CurriUNET Training (2012), EBSCO Discovery Service Training (2012) 
Marian, Giles, & the Party Girl (2011), and Wikipedia: The Democratization of Information 
or its Dissolution (2013). 

Scott is the primary instructor for three introductory Library Science classes:  LIB 101: 
Introduction to Academic Libraries, LIB 110: Introduction to Internet Research, and LIB 
107: Information Literacy. During his tenure, he completely rewrote and redesigned both 
LIB 101 and LIB 110, and LIB 105: Introduction to Libraries and Information (which has 
since been obsoleted), as they were badly out of date.  He created and developed LIB 107, 
which was based on the Association of College and Research Libraries (ACRL) Information 
Literacy standards and informed by an extant course at Cal Poly SLO.   

Always an early adopter of technology, he began teaching LIB 107 and LIB 110 as online 
courses in 2002 utilizing MS Front Page.  These were some of the first online classes taught 
at AVC. Prior to the introduction of Blackboard’s help service, he would often troubleshoot 
student computer problems by phone—thus facilitating student success.   Since then he has 
integrated online tools, such as MyAVC, Blackboard, blogs and online videos (which he 
creates using web cams, screen capture software, and video editing software and delivers 
through YouTube), into his both his online and in-class courses. 

2. Increases knowledge for a specific discipline. 

Dr. Lee has contributed to knowledge in the disciplines of Library Science and Education. He 
was  a co-author of Introduction to Streaming Video for Novices published in Library Hi Tech 
News in 2004. This particular article has been cited in the literature consistently since its 
publication, and is one of the earliest contributions concerning the use of video technology 
in library education tutorials.  He was co-author of Online Library Tutorials at Antelope 
Valley College published in Community and Junior College Libraries, a peer reviewed journal, 
in 2005.  This is one of the earliest articles about the use of online tutorials in libraries that 
is still being cited as recently as 2014.  His doctoral dissertation, entitled An Exploratory 



Case Study of Library Anxiety and Basic Skills English Students in a California Community 
College District, in 2011, was a significant contribution to both Library Science and 
Developmental Education, as little research had been done on this topic in either discipline.  
He authored an article based on his dissertation that appeared in Community & Junior 
College Libraries in 2012 that was cited almost immediately by other researchers.   In 2013 
he co-authored a book chapter, “Taming the Bureaucratic Beast, or: how we learned to stop 
stressing and take control of accreditation” in The Machiavellian Librarian (Chandos 
Publishing, 2013). 

3. Brings credit to the institution. 

Dr. Lee’s many activities reflect very positively on the college.  He has made numerous 
presentations around the state including: Introduction to Streaming Video for Novices at the 
2004 California Library Association’s Annual Conference; An Exploratory Study of Library 
Anxiety in Basic Skills Students at the Library Services for Basic Skills & ESL Students 
Conference in 2013; and SLO’s for Library Science Faculty at the Academic Senate for 
California Community Colleges (ASCCC) Counseling and Library Science Development 
Institute.   He was also a co-Presenter and Facilitator for multiple breakout sessions at the 
2008 ASCCC Accreditation Institute, and a co-presenter at the ASCCC’s Fall 2007, Fall 2009, 
Fall 2013, and Spring 2014 Plenary Sessions.  He was co-author of the ASCCC’s Agents of 
Change: Examining the Role of Student Learning Outcomes and Assessment Coordinators in 
California Community Colleges in 2007 and was the lead author for the ASCCC’s Standards of 
Practice for California Community College Library Faculty and Programs in 2010.  Both were 
the first documents of their type to come from the state senate.  

Dr. Lee has been a member of the ASCCC’s Accreditation and Student Learning Outcomes 
Committee (2007 – 2008), Counseling, Library Faculty Issues Committee (2009 – 2011) and 
is currently a member of the Education Policies Committee.  He has also been a member of 
the Library and Learning Resources Advisory Committee of the Chancellor’s Office (2009 – 
2011) and was a member of ASCCC’s Hiring and Evaluation Task Force (2013 – 2014).  This 
task force was formed to examine the roll of peer review in the hiring and evaluation of 
faculty in California Community Colleges and made recommendations to the state 
legislature.  He was personally invited to join the task force by the President of the ASCCC. 

4.  Is a compassionate and skillful educator who opens visionary insights for students. 

We live today in an information-rich society.  The concept that not all information is reliable 
is often foreign to students.  In his classes, Dr. Lee challenges students to become careful 
and discriminating consumers of information by teaching them to evaluate the credibility 
and context of information sources.  Through the hands-on creation of catalogs and blogs, 
Dr. Lee also teaches students to understand information from a creator-organizer-publisher 
perspective.   

For many students, taking a class from Dr. Lee is a life-changing experience.  Many have 
commented that they feel all students should be required to take his courses.   A common 
refrain from students is, “I wish I’d taken this class earlier!”  Former students drop by to 
update him on their progress, and he is frequently asked to write recommendations for 
scholarships, academic programs, and universities.  Citing his class as their motivation, at 
least three former students have gone on to get Master’s Degrees in Library Science and 
become practicing librarians, including one who returned to the college as an intern while 
in graduate school.    



Dr. Lee is also an advisor to a student club, The Alliance.  He is always available to club 
members who are just learning about the intricacies of organizational leadership.  These 
students grow significantly in confidence and competence under his guidance  

5. Is acknowledged by the educational community as a learned individual. 

That Dr. Lee is an acknowledged by the educational community as a learned individual is 
evident from his publications, conference presentations, and state-wide committee 
memberships detailed above in section 3.  In addition he was invited to be a guest lecturer 
in the Academic Libraries seminar at the UCLA Graduate School of Education & Information 
Science (UCLA GSE&IS) in 2011 and 2015.  He was also invited to present and participate in 
panel discussions on post-doctoral publishing in the Education Leadership Program at 
UCLA in 2013.  His formal academic accomplishments include an A.A. in Communications 
and Broadcasting Technology: Television Option from Montgomery College, Rockville, a B.A. 
in Media and Theater Arts from Montana State University, an M.S. in Library Science from 
The Catholic University of America, and an Ed.D. from UCLA.    

6.  Demonstrates persistent dedication to innovation and excellence in education. 

Throughout his career at AVC, Dr. Lee has been dedicated to innovation and excellence in 
education.  He was a pioneer in the use of streaming video for library instruction, and was 
an early adopter of online education for the Library and AVC.  He has increasingly 
integrated Blackboard and other instructional technologies such as student-generated blogs 
and digital video into his classes. Most recently he introduced DeskTracker, an automated 
data tracking system for reference desk statistics. By using DeskTracker, Microsoft Excel 
and SPSS, he can achieve a level of detail and analysis about the Library’s reference 
transactions that are far beyond what is common in academic libraries.  He has also 
completed courses in the @One Certification Program and will be taking more during the 
Spring 2015 semester.  This semester he will also begin redesigning and remaking the 
Library’s online tutorials to make them available in Blackboard, increase their interactivity, 
and integrate video.       

 

Dr. Lee is an enthusiastic experimenter with new technologies, and a pusher of limits.  He is 
a librarian—and to be a librarian is to never stop learning, never stop changing, never stop 
grasping for the new and different that will, ultimately, make all the difference.  I therefore, 
without reservation, nominate him as our next Scholar in Residence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AVC Scholar in Residence Nominee: Mrs. Melanie Parker 
 

 
It is an honor to nominate Melanie Parker for this prestigious award.  Melanie is a 
full-time tenured faculty in the Child and Family Education/Education Department.  
She not only meets but exceeds all the criteria for this award.  Below is a brief 
summary of her hard work, contributions and accomplishments to AVC. 
 
Melanie is a compassionate and skillful educator who opens visionary insights for 
students and is acknowledged by the educational community as a learned 
individual.  She consistently updates her classes and introduces innovative teaching 
ideas. Her colleagues describe her as “well organized and thoughtful in her approach 
to diverse groups of students and strives to update her knowledge through current 
research information”.  She is receptive to a team approach, sharing new teaching 
techniques, and supports her colleagues with honesty and encouragement.  
 
Melanie serves on numerous committees such as the OC (formerly SLO), FPD, AP&P, 
hiring committees and accreditation.  She has also served on several tenure track 
and adjunct evaluation committees, and takes the time to mentor and train new 
adjunct and full-time hires.   
 
Over the years, we have had the pleasure observing how hard she works, her 
contributions and outstanding input and ideas.  Melanie is often the “voice of 
reason” at these meetings and will be the one to serve on sub-committees to 
accomplish required tasks.  For example, recently she and a colleague created a 
checklist to help streamline the SLO process for the committee and all AVC faculty.  
Irit Gat comments that she was on the OC committee when Melanie was the chair 
and she knows the countless hours Melanie worked to help faculty, giving 
workshops and working one-on-one with staff.  Melanie is well-respected on this 
campus and is a role-model and mentor to us and many others.  Often when we seek 
advice from colleagues, the answer we get is “See what Melanie Parker thinks.”   
 
Melanie also teaches in the Foster & Kinship Care Education program, under a grant 
from the CA Office of the Chancellor, where she facilitates classes and seminars for 
the foster parent community.  This additional commitment is “above and beyond” 
the call of duty.  She genuinely cares about the individual needs of her students, 
foster parents and colleagues, and also takes into consideration their educational  
journey and the long-term path of their success.  To remain current, she is a member 
of the CA Early Childhood Mentor Teacher Advisory & Selection Committee, Foster 
& Kinship Care Education Advisory Committee and the Child & Family/Education 
Advisory Committee.  
 
Melanie has spoken to community programs for career development and many of 
her former students return with graduate degrees and shadow her on the job. She 
has an open-door policy and often students come to her seeking advice and help; 



Melanie is always going the “extra mile” to help students succeed.  At times she has 
spoken with us about community services for professional help for her students.  
When we discuss students it is apparent she cares deeply about all AVC students 
and loves teaching. She is eager to make a difference in improving the educational 
quality that students experience, whether in the classroom, work experience or 
through student service. 
 
Melanie Parker increases knowledge in her discipline, brings credit to AVC, is 
compassionate and cares about students, is highly regarded by the AVC community 
and demonstrates persistent dedication to innovation and excellence at AVC as is 
exemplified by the information given above.  She is highly deserving of the AVC 
Scholar-in-Residence award. 
 
Thank you for the consideration,  
 
Irit Gat, PhD 
Ande Sanders, M.A. 
Social and Behavioral Science Division 



Lawrence Veres 
 2/26/2015 

10:41 AM  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

It is my pleasure to nominate Dr Zia Nisani, PhD as scholar in residence 2014-2015.  Dr Nisani is a full time 
member of certified staff at AVC.  He increases knowledge for his specific discipline by the work he does in 
research and presentations in his specific subject area.  He has served as department chair of Biological and 
Environmental sciences.  He has served on the Accreditation Committee Standard II.  He serves on the 
Academic Senate.  He is serving on The Interdisciplinary Learning Committee.  He is an advisor to STEM club 
and one of the advisors to Alpha Iota.  He brings to the institution credit for his previous service on various 
Masters and PhD committees at Loma Linda University, talks he has given to school children in Kern County 
on being a Biologist; has conducted reviews for science olympiad and supervised science olympiad event in 
Entomology.  He conducted a two week workshop for local middle school science teachers, and has been 
featured on the History Channel talking about venom.  Dr Nisani is a skillful educator who works hard with his 
students to given them greater insights into his subject matter and the future of their education.  He is 
acknowledged by the education community as a learned individual by the many publications he has written and 
the seminars he has presented, the list is lengthy.  He has laid the seeds for an eventual undergraduate 
research program at AVC and he demonstrates constant and ongoing dedication to his subject with his 
continuing education and work and presentations in his field of biology.   

Respectfully, 
Larry Veres 
Assoc. Adj. Professor, Academic Senate Member. 
 



1. Is a full-time member of  the certificated staff  (non-teaching and teaching faculty). 
Christos Valiotis has been a full-time faculty member at AVC since 1997.  Motivated to help students excel, 

Christos strives to be an outstanding instructor and a faculty member who contributes to continuous 
advancement of  our college.  He improved the way physics and physical science classes are taught at AVC.  
During recent years when there was no full time engineering instructor, Christos not only helped maintain the 
engineering department, but fought to create and sustain a partnership with a university that would provide 
engineering students the opportunity to complete a bachelors degree in Lancaster.  He is an advisor for student 
clubs.  He is conducting undergraduate research while working with other faculty to institutionalize and expand 
research activities.  A staunch advocate of  shared governance, Christos has chaired many committees, served as 
Academic Senate President, and currently chairs the physical sciences department.  Christos is a “valuable” 
faculty member in a literal sense as well.  He has brought millions of  dollars of  funding from grants and 
community partners to the district to enhance STEM education.   

 
 
2. Increases knowledge for a specific discipline. 
Early in his teaching career, Christos was disappointed with student performance on a nationally 

standardized physics test.  Seeking improvement he tested student-centered teaching methods.  When Socratic 
dialogue and inquiry-based activities brought 40% success up to 65%  (which was above the national average) 
on that same test, Christos started transforming the physics and physical science programs at AVC.   

 
These successes furthered his interest in science education.  Over the years, he has presented his results at 

science education conferences around the country.   While expanding the body of knowledge in this area, 
Christos has championed discovery teaching methods within and outside AVC.   Since 2003 he has secured 
various grants to provide resources and professional development for K-14 mathematics and science teachers. 

 
 
3. Brings credit to the institution. 
Christos’ interest in science education coincided with nascent community interest in the same.  For the 

past 15 years, he has been a key collaborator with organizations throughout the Aerospace Valley who share the 
vision of  students receiving exceptional education, earning degrees in STEM subjects, and returning to work in 
this area.   

 
Leveraging connections that were already in place while forging new relationships, Christos has established 

AVC as a clearinghouse for STEM information and activities in the Aerospace Valley.  A formal example of  
this is the annual STEMposium, where educators, administrators, business leaders, and government partners 
meet to discuss needs, solve problems, and share progress.   

This cohesive, comprehensive, community approach has garnered national recognition as a model for 
other regions to emulate.  It has also made AVC successful in STEM-related grant applications.  

 
4. Is a compassionate and skillful educator who opens visionary insights for students. 
Typically, students new to Christos’ classes are resistant to his methods.  “He doesn’t lecture!  He doesn’t 

teach!”  But, once they notice how much they are learning, students come to appreciate what is happening in 
his classroom.  When former students return to AVC they remark that Valiotis’ methods truly helped them 
develop the critical thinking skills that are essential for their job in engineering, for their upper level 
mathematics classes, for their computer science projects… More concretely, when Student Learning Outcomes 
were introduced, Christos documented student conceptual understanding increased consistently from 22% in 
2003 to over 60% in 2009.   

 
Christos has helped to organize a vibrant STEM club at AVC.  Students are involved in rocket 

competitions, outreach to K-12, networking with local STEM employers, and novel research projects.   
 
One could say that his “students” are also the teachers who are flourishing from the professional 

development and unwavering support that Christos provides.  He does everything:  being in the classroom with 
a middle school teacher who is too nervous to try a new lesson on his/her own, training teachers to set up lab 
equipment, giving pep talks at school staff  meetings, connecting AVC faculty and student volunteers with 



 – 2 – June 25, 2015  

teachers, advocating for professional development support, securing funding for resources…It would be hard 
to find a local science or mathematics teacher who has not received personal support from Christos.   
 

5. Is acknowledged by the educational community as a learned individual. 
In 2009, Christos won the Hayward Award.  He has been invited to speak at science education conferences 

throughout the country.   
 

6. Demonstrates persistent dedication to innovation and excellence in education. 
In Christos’ vision for science education, he sees a direct connection between a student’s earliest science 

experiences and their ultimate success in a STEM field.  Thus, he supports the K-12 teachers who prepare 
students for AVC and he maintains conversations with future employers of  AVC students.   This broad 
perspective enhances his own teaching.   He has great enthusiasm for his responsibility to ensure that students 
enrolled in science classes are exceptionally prepared for the next steps on their pathway to success.  As a 
faculty member, Christos also takes pride in contributing to the greatness of  our college.  A few more examples 
of  Christos’ contributions to education are: 

 
- Establishing Antelope Valley College’s annual Regional Science Olympiad (Middle and high school 

students, and this year elementary age students, train in mathematics and science events for annual competition.  
Approximately 50 teams participated in events developed and staffed by hundreds of  volunteers from AVC and 
our STEM partners.) 

 - Increasing the number of  students enrolled in physics and engineering classes at AVC.  Engineering 
majors at AVC have a seamless path to obtain a bachelors degree from CSU Long Beach while staying in 
Lancaster.  STEM majors have access to internships, scholarships, and other opportunities from local industry 
and government agencies through the relationships that Christos has built. 

        - Shepherding a hope in the year 2001 to someday have 1000 AV middle and high school students enrolled 
in STEM courses into a resultant 9000 students in such classes in 2013-2014.  Some of  these well-prepared 
students will come to AVC to continue their studies.    

 



1 
 

 
 
February 17, 2015 
 
Dr. Ed Beyer 
President, Academic Senate 
Antelope Valley Community College 
3041 West Avenue K 
Lancaster, California 93536-5426 
 
Dear Dr. Beyer and Members of the Academic Senate: 
 
I am most pleased to nominate for the 2015-2016 Scholar in Residence for Antelope 
Valley College, Professor (soon-to-be Dr.) Ken Shafer, Professor of History, in the 
Division of Social and Behavioral Sciences. 
 

1. Is a full-time member of the certificated staff (non-teaching and teaching 
faculty). 

 
Since August, 2007, Professor Shafer has been a member of the Social and Behavioral 
Sciences Division.  He teaches a variety of basic introductory courses in World 
Civilization and United States History.  This spring 2015 semester, Professor Shafer has 
begun his tenure as the Department Chair of History, Philosophy, Political Science, and 
Economics. 
 

2. Increases knowledge for a specific discipline. 
 
Professor Shafer is a vital member of the History Faculty, leading it as department chair, 
taking an important role in developing the SLOs and, also, shaping the department and 
discipline for years to come by selecting quality adjunct faculty, with or sometimes 
without the divisional dean, checking references, and selecting people who are of a high 
caliber.  His involvement in the Faculty Professional Development program also attests to 
this. 
 

3. Brings credit to the institution. 
 
After only a few years here at the college, Professor Shafer became divisional 
representative for Social Science, a capacity in which he has served for four years.  In 
2013-2014, he assumed the task of First Vice President of the Academic Senate.  Serving 
on the Distance Education committee in 2012-2013, he helped to choose the server the 
college would select and contract with for online education.  He has organized and 
participated in a number of flex activities ranging from Lincoln’s two hundredth birthday, 
the fiftieth anniversary of the assassination of John F. Kennedy to the elections of 1912, 
1992, the History of the First World War and soon the seventieth anniversary of the 
Second World War and the coming of the Cold War. 
 



2 
 

 
4. Is a compassionate and skillful educator who opens visionary insights for 

students. 
 
Students laud Professor Shafer for his enthusiasm, organization of the classroom and his 
innovative requirements.  They particularly cite his use of small group assignments and 
how they are involved in activities that get them engaged in the learning process.   
 

5. Is acknowledged by the educational community as a learned individual. 
 
In the summer of 2013, Professor Shafer spent two weeks in Missouri and Southern 
Illinois visiting a variety of historical archives and libraries to further his research on his 
dissertation in the final stages of completion.  He is looking at primary documents from 
the 1850s in a fresh, creative, and unique way. 
  

6. Demonstrates persistent dedication to innovation and excellence in 
education. 
 

In addition to his teaching, his writing, and his work as department chair, Professor 
Shafer has spearheaded the process to create AVC’s first ever online history courses from 
inception up to approval.  He has also initiated the organization of division-wide PLOs as 
well as meetings of all history faculty to write the discipline SLOs which he continues to 
edit and update. 
 
 
Thank you very much for your consideration of this worthy candidate. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dr. Matthew Lee Jaffe 
Professor of History 
Social and Behavioral Sciences 
Division 


	4-2-15 Senate Agenda
	4-2-15 Senate Minutes
	4-2-15 Senate - APP Report LHarmon
	4-2-15 Online Education Initiative - MOU
	4-2-15 Senate Sabbatical Attachments
	4-2-15 Senate Equivalencies
	2014-15 Nomination - GHallerbyIGat
	2014-15 Nomination-SLeebyCBurrell
	2014-15 Nomination - MParkerbyIGatandASanders
	2014-15 Nomination - ZNisaniLVeres
	2014-15 Nomination - CValiotis by JHarper
	2014-15 Nomination - KShaferbyMJaffe

